

CONSOLIDATED PLAN ADVISORY BOARD (CPAB)

MINUTES

Wednesday, January 10, 2024

1200 3rd Avenue, 14th Floor, San Diego, CA 92101

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
 Abena Bradford, Council District 3 	 VACANT, Council District 4
 Yegin Chen, Council District 1 	 VACANT, Council District 9
 Rich Thesing, Council District 7 	
 Lauren Graces, Council District 5 	
 Jordan Beane, Council District 2 	
 Victoria Barba, Council District 8 	
 Smith Sirisakorn, Council District 6 	

STAFF PRESENT	ATTENDANCE
 Nadine Hassoun, Community Development Specialist Nancy Luevano, Community Development Project Manager Melissa Villalpando, Community Development Specialist Ashley Gain, Community Development Project Manager Liza Fune, Contract Monitoring Tina Hines, Contract Monitoring La Tisha Thomas, Community Development Specialist Robert Ashton, Community Development Project Manager 	Three members of the public joined the meeting via Zoom.

Call to Order

1. CPAB Co-Chair Abena Bradford called the meeting to order at 10:10a.m. Abena Bradford took roll call; five board members were present. Quorum was achieved at the same time.

Date Prepared: 1/11/24 by N. Luevano

Final Approved: 2/14/24

Motion/Second by J. Bean/R. Thesing

Vote: 6 votes in favor, 0 opposed, 0 abstentions



Approval for Board Members

2. Motion to approve CPAB members, Yegin Chen and Rich Thesing to attend the meeting virtually due to Just Cause. A motion was made by Smith Sirisakorn, and was seconded by Abena Bradford. The board approved that Yegin Chen and Rich Thesing may attend the meeting virtually as CPAB members, 5-0.

Approval of Minutes

Motion to approve minutes from previous meeting November 13, 2023, by Rich Thesing seconded by Jordan Beane. Minutes approved, 6-0, with one abstention.

Board Member Announcements

- 4. Smith Sirisakorn announced the 36th Annual All Peoples Celebration to honor Martin Luther King Jr., on Monday, January 15, 2024. Smith shared that he had extra table seat tickets for those that wished to attend.
- 5. Abena Bradford shared that she was attending Mayor Todd Gloria, 2024 State of the City Address. Four additional CPAB members confirmed that they would be attending.

Staff Announcements

- 6. Nancy Luevano, Community Development Project Manager shared the FY 2025 Community Development Block Grant Request for Proposals upcoming deadlines. The Request for Proposal Technical Assistance resumed in the new year and will run until the end of this week, January 12, 2024. The last day to email RFP related questions to CDBG@sandiego.gov and to request updates to Primary/Secondary Representatives on ED Grants will be on January 16, 2024, at 5:00pm PST. The deadline to Request ED Grants Navigation Assistance/Staff Support is January 19, 2024, at 12:00pm PST. Lastly, submittal of FY 2025 CDBG RFP Responses via ED Grants will be January 19, 2024 at 5:00pm (PST).
- 7. Nancy announced the Request for Proposal for Fair Housing Services. The Economic Development Department's Fiscal Year 2025 Practice Fair Housing Request for Proposal (RFP) for Fair Housing Services is now available. The City of San Diego is seeking a fair housing provider to provide fair housing services and administration of the City of San Diego's "Practice Fair Housing." The program for an initial contract term of one year starting July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, subject to agreement negotiations. Upon the initial one-year contact term there will be four one-year options to extend the contract. The Request for Proposal (RFP) submittal deadline will be Friday, February 9, 2024, at 5p.m. (PST). Late applications will not be accepted. The Request for Proposal (RFP) package has been published online through the ED Grants portal under the "Opportunities" tab.

Non-agenda Public Comment

1. No non-agenda public comments were received.

Action Items

Date Prepared: 1/11/24 by N. Luevano

Final Approved: 2/14/24

Motion/Second by J. Bean/R. Thesing

Vote: 6 votes in favor, 0 opposed, 0 abstentions



1. **Bill Witt, Deputy City Attorney, provided a presentation on an Overview of Financial Conflicts-of-Interest Review.** (Presentation attached) Questions regarding Public Records Act/Brown Act Training were addressed.

- a. CPAB member Abena Bradford asked if members of the board may bid for a contact under Economic Development Department with the City of San Diego if it is not part of the Community Development Block Grant? Bill shared that it may be a different category however, due to the complexity he would need to review the details more closely. A detailed email may be sent to the City Attorney's office to receive an answer.
- b. CPAB member Lauren Graces asked when the Annual Form 700 was due. Bill responded that it may be different for each board member, depending on the date of appointment to the board. Nadine Hassoun, Community Development Specialist shared that she will be following up with the date.
- c. CPAB member Victoria Barba shared that the Form 700 was due on April 2, 2024.
- d. CPAB member Rich Thesing mentioned that since conflict of interest had to do with financial gain would helping a friend apply for a CDBG grant be an example of conflict of interest. Bill clarified that conflict of interest looked at the financial effect upon an economic gain. If the friend provided a gift or financial gain, then it would be a conflict.
- e. Ashely Gain, Community Development Project Manager shared that CPAB members may also use their ethic's training when determining if there is a conflict of interest.
- f. CPAB member Smith Sirisakorn asked if he voluntarily served on a board for no economic gain would it be a conflict of interest if the organization applied for CDBG. Bill shared that the City Attorney's office would need to take a closer look at the specific situation.
- g. Ashely Gain shared that CPAB members may email Nadine Hassoun if they had a specific question on conflict of interest. Nadine would forward the question to Bill Witt, Deputy City Attorney.
- h. Ashely mentioned that CPAB members will be receiving a list of all applicant organizations Board of Directors. If a board member recognized a name on the list, then he/she would not be able to score the application.

Action Items

- 2. Nancy Luevano, Project Manager, provided a presentation on Fiscal Year 2025 CPAB Review Handbook. (*Presentation attached*)
 - a. CPAB member Abena Bradford asked if CPAB will be receiving information regarding the scoring results prior to going to City Council for approval. Ashley Gain shared that CPAB will have an opportunity to ratify scores and recommendations during the March 13th CPAB meeting. Nadine Hassoun added that a draft of the FY 2025 2029 Consolidated Plan will be presented during the CPAB meeting in April 2024.

Revisions to Draft: N/A

Revisions Prepared: N/A

Date Prepared: 1/11/24 by N. Luevano

Final Approved: 2/14/24

Motion/Second by J. Bean/R. Thesing

Vote: 6 votes in favor, 0 opposed, 0 abstentions



- b. Melissa Villalpando, Community Development Specialist reminded CPAB members that CDBG applicants sometimes requested their prior year's grant application to review their scores and comments made by CPAB members. Melissa asked board members to be mindful when scoring the applications and provide detailed feedback. Ashley Gain, Project Manager, added that the board members names in the CDBG application scores will be kept confidential.
- c. CPAB member Smith Sirisakorn asked how many applications CPAB will be scoring. Melissa Villalpando shared that 50 organizations were invited to submit a Request for Proposal (RFP). Melissa added that it would depend on the number of organizations that submitted their application and moved forward to the next phase after the internal CDD staff evaluation.
- d. CPAB member Abena Bradford asked why it only took one day to post the scoring results on the CDBG website. Ashely Gain clarified that ED Grants generated the results automatically, then CDD staff checked the scores manually for accuracy. The process allows EDD to post the scores on March 1, 2024.
- e. CPAB member Abena Bradford asked if she may edit a score review after it had been submitted. Melissa Villalpando clarified that CPAB members may want to read all of the CDBG applications prior to begin scoring. Melissa shared that once the scores are submitted on ED Grants, the software will not allow them to make edits.

Action Items

- 1. Nadine Hassoun, Project Specialist gave an updated on the FY 2025 2029 Consolidated Plan
 - a. Nadine shared that on December 11, 2023, a draft of the FY 2025 2029 Consolidated Plan Goals was presented to City Council, and it was approved it unanimously.
 - b. The community engagement component of the Consolidated Plan has concluded. The survey was closed on January 7, 2024. Over one thousand surveys responses were received.
 - c. The consultants are currently drafting the FY 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan. It will be available for public comment on April 2024. It will also be presented to CPAB during April's meeting. CPAB members will receive a copy of the FY 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan to review and discuss during April 10th, 2024, CPAB Meeting.
 - d. CPAB member Rich Thesing asked if public comments will be submitted along with the Consolidated Plan goals. Nadine confirmed that all public comments will be submitted to HUD along with the FY 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan.

Other Items

1. CPAB member Rich Thesing shared that he would like for CDBG to fund organizations that work with immigrants in San Diego County. Ashley Gain clarified that there are

Date Prepared: 1/11/24 by N. Luevano

Final Approved: 2/14/24

Motion/Second by J. Bean/R. Thesing

Vote: 6 votes in favor, 0 opposed, 0 abstentions



currently a few organizations that receive funding from CDBG that work with the immigrant and refugee population.

- 2. CPAB member Yegin Chen made a comment on considering modifying what constitutes a quorum since there remains two seats vacant in the CPAB Board. Nadine Hassoun, Project Specialist clarified that a quorum consists of five in-person board members. Nadine shared that last year an inquiry was made to the Board and Commissions office if a modification may be made to the quorum requirements. The office had not provided an update. Nadine will be following up with this inquiry.
- 3. CPAB member Rich Thesing thanked Nadine Hassoun with assisting him and Yegin Chen in attending the meeting virtually due to unforeseen circumstances.
- 4. CPAB member Lauren Graces commented that it may be easier to use a percentage amount of filled seats to set the quorum requirements due the number of vacancies.
- 5. CPAB member Abena Bradford asked if the board may address questions that they may have during the scoring process during the next CPAB meeting. Nadine Hassoun clarified that CPAB may ask scoring questions during the February Ad Hoc Committee meetings. Nadine will be emailing CPAB members potential meeting dates/times.
- 6. CPAB member Lauren Graces asked how to register to ED Grants to score the CDBG applications. Nadine Hassoun shared that she emailed the Scoring Criteria Handbook on 1/9/24. In the scoring applications section of the handbook, it has instructions on how to register to ED Grants. A link is provided in the handbook.
- 7. CPAB member Rich Thesing shared that he did not remember his password. Ashley Gain reminded the board members to email CDBG@sandiego.gov if they needed to reset their password. CPAB members will then receive a reset password link.
- 8. CPAB member Abena Bradford thanked EDD staff for the presentation and their hard work.

Adjournment

1. Meeting closed at 11:20am.

Date Prepared: 1/11/24 by N. Luevano

Final Approved: 2/14/24

Motion/Second by J. Bean/R. Thesing

Vote: 6 votes in favor, 0 opposed, 0 abstentions